MINUTES OF WORK SESSION
OF THE NEWPORT NEWS CITY COUNCIL
HELD IN THE 10" FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM
2400 Washington Avenue
May 26, 2009
4:00 p.m.

PRESENT: Dr. Patricia P. Woodbury; Herbert H. Baaemlr.; Madeline McMillan; Sharon
P. Scott (arrived at 4:15 p.m.); Tina Vick; andggh C. Whitaker ---------------- 6

ABSENT:  Joe S. Frank --------c--mczmzmeeoes S — 1

OTHERS PRESENT: Randy W. Hildebrandt; Stuart EizK&abel Washington Jenkins; Alan
Archer; Neil Morgan; Cynthia Rohlf; Lottie Vincen®llen Jackson; Karen Wilds; Joseph
DuRant; Lynn Sugg; Al Riutort; Sheila McAllister;el®d Fowler; Harold Roach, Christine

Mignogna; Michael Nall; Sabine Hirschauer; Jennifdalker; Cleder Jones; Kim Lee; and Jerri
Wilson

l. Reauthorization of the Jefferson Park Redevalem Plan

Mr. Randy W. Hildebrandt, City Manager, reportéde Jefferson Park
Redevelopment Plan (Plan) was approved by City €ibon June 26, 2006, in accordance with
Title 36 of the Code of Virginia. Title 36 requiretthat redevelopment projects must be
completed in five years and reauthorized in 30@ar®nths from the original approval date by
City Council. He introduced Ms. Karen Wilds, Ex#@ea Director, Newport News
Redevelopment & Housing Authority (NNRHA), to repon the Plan. He explained one issue
that should be addressed dealt with the Capitalrdegments Plan (CIP) and the need for
additional funding to support the completion of Blan.

Ms. Wilds stated, since approval of the PlanJone 26, 2006, the NNRHA had
accomplished a great deal in property acquisitiod kblighted structure demolition in the Plan
area. She reported the Title 36 State law changeP0D2 and required that redevelopment
projects be reauthorized in 30 to 36 months froendhiginal date of approval.  Accordingly,
she asked for City Council’'s support in reauthagzithe Plan at its June 9, 2009 Regular
Meeting. This allowed the NNRHA to complete tharPbnd gave the City the maximum five
years under the redevelopment plan that was alldweéldtle 36.

Ms. Wilds reported a shortfall in funding for tRéan would occur in FY 2011.
Presently, the dollar amount earmarked in the GtRHe Plan was $300,000. The gap the City
would realize to accomplish the Plan, after spemavhat was left in FY 2009, FY 2010 and FY
2011, amounted to $1.5 million. In the event rediegment efforts were not concluded with
available funding by FY 2011, City Council wouldveathe option to adopt a new five year
redevelopment plan to continue revitalization atés.



Page 2
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Ms. Wilds stated, in addition to the CIP, HUDoalted $656,000 to the City,
under the Economic Development Initiative Progrémnbe used for blighted, and deteriorated
residential structures in Jefferson Park on thetwede of Jefferson Avenue. Additionally,
NNRHA received a letter from HUD on May 21, 200®yhauncing the City would receive
$432,000 in additional funding for Jefferson Panktloe west side of Jefferson Avenue.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the fungimvas in addition to the
$2.1 million that had already been expended inTitke 36 redevelopment area. Ms. Wilds
replied the funding was in addition to the $2.1liwrl that had already been spent in the Title 36
redevelopment area. The Economic Developmengativé funding was being spent in Jefferson
Park on the west side of Jefferson Avenue. Fedienaing could only be spent in an area where
there was no threat of eminent domain.

Councilwoman McMillan understood the Economic Blepment Initiative
funding did not count as part of the $1.5 millioeeded to complete the Plan. Ms. Wilds
confirmed that the Economic Development Initiatfueding did not count towards the $1.5
million in additional funding needed for the Plan.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the City anbger had already
projected the $1.5 million in the CIP. City Manag#ldebrandt replied he would have to make
an adjustment to that when he presented the FY 2012015 CIP to City Council.

Councilwoman McMillan asked the City Manager taberate on his comment,
“make an adjustment to that.” City Manager Hildeiut replied, at this point, and since the
process had not been started, he would make astadjot in the sense of increasing the amount
of funding from the $300,000 to $1.5 million to aoemodate funding for completion of the
Plan.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the Cityalager was talking about
another bond issue. City Manager Hildebrandt eepWhatever money proposed for the Plan
would come out of bonded debt, which was how thg flinded the entire redevelopment plan
thus far. He hoped by FY 2012 and beyond, the @iuld be in a better position. The CIP
provided for more money being spent in FY 2012, hagiond, and hopefully the City could
accommodate that without affecting other projedistil he went through the process of looking
at the CIP in the next five years, he could noicgrdate the impact of that additional funding.

Councilwoman McMillan noted a list of propertigeat had already been
demolished and inquired about the number remaitonige demolished. Ms. Wilds replied the
City had completed 65% of acquisition for the sitéh 35% remaining, which included several
blighted commercial structures along Jefferson AenThat was the reason the dollar amount
increased.



Page 3
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Councilman Bateman inquired about the methodologgd in the acquisition of
the properties for the Plan. Ms. Wilds replied @i&y had an independent appraisal done for
each property and an offer was based on that.

Councilman Bateman inquired how the City priaatl which properties they
acquired. Ms. Wilds replied the Plan, at the titngas approved, designated all properties to be
acquired.

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the City lgmdbd luck in acquiring
properties for less than the appraised value becsoisie buildings were torn down. Ms. Wilds
replied that was possible, if a building was cigdthe Department of Codes Compliance.

Councilman Bateman inquired about the CIP req@estFY 2011 and what
alternative the City would have if the CIP was doaised to the point that it could not include
the Plan. City Manager Hildebrandt replied thegoaon would have to be stretched out. Ms.
Wilds replied a new plan could be designed anditr Council would have the opportunity to
approve another five year plan.

City Manager Hildebrandt asked City Council fdreit support to adopt a
resolution at its June 9, 2009 Regular Meeting gprave the reauthorization of the Plan as
required by Title 36 of the Code of Virginia.

Il. Memorandum of Agreement — Fats, Oils and Ged&©G) Program

City Manager Hildebrandt stated the FOG prograas \&a mandate associated
with the Regional Special Order by Consent with Bepartment of Environmental Quality
(DEQ). The program would be implemented in coaation with the Hampton Roads Sanitation
District (HRSD) and other localities in Hampton Rea He introduced Mr. Reed Fowler,
Director, Department of Public Works, to reporttba program.

Mr. Fowler reported the Fats, Oils and Grease@)-Program, as a component of
the DEQ Consent Order, was essential to the Qibgsitenance plan. He asked City Council to
authorize the City Manager to endorse a FOG Menaianof Agreement with HRSD and
thirteen surrounding jurisdictions.

Mr. Fowler reported FOG was a by-product of fquéparation, cooking and
cleanup of dishes, pots and pans, utensils, etee pliblic purpose of the newly required FOG
program was to proactively minimize the environnaigtdamaging build-up of organic material
in sewer lines, which often resulted in expensiaekbups and harmful overflows. These
harmful build-ups most often occurred in conjunctiwith restaurants or other facilities that
produced a large number of prepared meals knovimoalsservice establishments. (A copy of



Page 4
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

the presentation, “City of Newport News FOG Progfaamd a copy of the Memorandum of
Agreement are attached and made a part of thesdesih

Councilman Bateman inquired whether the City nmegh food service
establishments to purchase grease traps. Mr. Foefpdied food service establishments were
required to purchase and use grease traps.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether food se®iestablishments were
advised not to dispose of FOG down their drains.r. Fowler replied that food service
establishments were advised and instructed naspmsde of FOG down their drains.

Councilwoman Scott inquired how the FOG legislativould be monitored to
insure that businesses abided by the law.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired whether solventsild be used to alleviate
the FOG problem. Mr. Fowler replied solvents we recommended because they were
hazardous to the downstream and treatment procébgre was no need for solvents if an
effective FOG containment system was installed.

Mr. Fowler reported an effective FOG program unled: 1) a Memorandum of
Agreement (MOA) between HRSD and regional locaiti2) Adoption of a FOG ordinance; 3)
Properly sized and maintained grease control deyvared 4) a FOG Inspector to inspect, educate
and enforce the City ordinance and, if requiresljésfines.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired what would HRSD da light of the
Memorandum of Agreement. Mr. Fowler replied thstfiphase of the agreement was for the
City Manager to agree that HRSD would conduct in8pas if Public Works found people not
in compliance with the FOG ordinance. The agre¢ratbowed HRSD to do what they legally
were able to do.

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether the City bagay extra funding to HRSD
to conduct inspections. Mr. Fowler replied they@aid HRSD through its own user fees. This
agreement gave HRSD permission to inspect the libgd service establishments.

Councilwoman Scott inquired how non-complianceies would be handled. Mr.
Fowler replied the City would treat non-complianesues the same way it treated citizens not in
compliance with the Solid Waste Ordinance.



Page 5
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Mr. Fowler stated FOG caused blockages that dedahitary sewer overflows,
which could result in a fine of $32,500, to a ldyaby DEQ, per occurrence. Eighty-seven
percent of sewer stoppages were caused from grease.

Councilwoman Woodbury questioned when the Cityldine an establishment
$32,500, which seemed to be hefty. City AttornegtKreplied a fine of $32,500 could be
imposed upon the City; it was not something thg €atuld impose on a food establishment. Mr.
Fowler pointed out the City could impose civil pkies through HRSD. HRSD had the right
and ability to cut off water and sewer systemsafay food service establishment that was not in
compliance.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the Cityopided food service
establishments with avenues to recycle, i.e. m¢jsdf companies that accepted grease for other
uses. Mr. Fowler replied the City provided foodvsme establishments with educational
resources and HRSD, as part of their private ingpes; provided food service establishments
with a list of companies that accepted greasettograuses.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the City HRSD arrived at a food
service establishment first. Mr. Fowler replied $IR arrived first. As the FOG program
progressed, Public Works would arrive first. Therivbrandum of Agreement allowed HRSD to
conduct inspections, on behalf of the City. Ibadtion was found to continuously have sewage
overflows, due to FOG, then HRSD was authorizemnigement whatever actions they deemed
necessary.

Councilwoman McMillan understood Public Works webilbe the first on the
scene of a non-compliant restaurant or food semstablishment. She felt, in that case, Public
Works could suggest a set of venues for restaaagitfood service establishment to explore to
effectively rid itself of FOG. Mr. Fowler agreedad stated Public Works would include
suggestions on how to effectively rid a food sexwstablishment of FOG.

City Manager Hildebrandt asked City Council topgort adoption of a
Memorandum of Agreement at its June 9, 2009 meetiHg stated more substantive actions
would be required by City Council, over the nextesal months, including the adoption of a
FOG ordinance and the hiring of a dedicated FO@dotor.

Miscellaneous ltem

City Manager Hildebrandt inquired whether Cityudoil had questions regarding
the supplemental stimulus money, received by thg fom the federal government, for the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) prograon, dise to rehabilitate and develop new
housing. He introduced Ms. Karen Wilds to explaow NNRHA planned to use the stimulus
funding.



Page 6
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Ms. Wilds reported the Department of Housing &ltdan Development (HUD)
notified the City, in early May 2009, that it woutdceive an additional $431,000 in CDBG
funding. The criteria for allocating the fundingquired: 1) it to be used for a shelter-ready
project; 2) it be used to create jobs; and 3) iubed for a project that the City could commit
spending to immediately. In light of such requiesits, NNRHA recommended using the
funding to rehabilitate six homes they owned. Tétebilitated homes would be offered to first-
time home buyers. The homes were primarily locatethe Southeast community, on"27
Street, 28 Street, 48 Street, 28 Street, 3 Street and Marshall Avenue.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired about the amoumbe allocated to rehabilitate
each of the six homes. Ms. Wilds replied approxélya$60,000 would be allocated to
rehabilitate each home, which included advertisingts, environmental review costs, testing
costs, etc.

Councilwoman McMillan questioned how the remaininds would be spent.
Ms. Wilds replied 20% of the funding could be usedadministrative costs, but NNRHA was
only using 10% for administrative costs. The rarmdar of the funding would be used for the
following: 1) $3,000 for pre-award costs, to inadudnvironmental testing, and advertising; 2)
$12,000 on costs related to disposition and undtngrto insure applicants met necessary
criteria; and 3) $2,000 for closing costs per famil

Councilwoman Scott inquired whether the fundirauld have been used for
facelifts for a number of houses as opposed to sixjhomes. Ms. Wilds replied NNRHA did
not have a list of people who were on a waitingfls the facelift program. NNRHA had not
funded a facelift program for a number of yearfie Toncern was that NNRHA be able to spend
the stimulus funding quickly and create real jobd homeownership.

Councilwoman McMillan voiced concern that thegadreated to rehabilitate the
six homes were temporary jobs, not long-term. Mélds replied many building trades
dramatically had been affected by the economic domn Although the jobs were temporary,
there was other stimulus funding received from H@pproximately $5 million, that would be
used to renovate the City’s public housing compdex8uch work would take a year or more to
complete. Some of the jobs were short-term, hiltcsintributed to the economy. The jobs
would be offered to a segment of the economy tlzt been heavily hit by the economic
downturn.

Councilman Bateman inquired whether NNRHA hireldsS-A Contractors to
perform construction projects on their behalf. Mélds replied NNRHA only hired Class-A
Contractors to perform construction projects.



Page 7
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury asked for assurance treatwbrk be spread around so
that it was not one contractor doing all of theatahtation projects. Ms. Wilds assured the work
was being spread around and a separate bid was@hbde each project.

Councilwoman Scott hoped should the NNRHA receadzlitional stimulus
funding, in the future, that the funding be used fexelift projects, i.e. streets. There was an
aging population in her district who could not affoto rehabilitate their homes. Citizens
complained that while their homes were nice, the#nior neighbors could not afford
rehabilitation costs. She felt rehabilitating sentitizen homes would also create jobs. Ms.
Wilds agreed such rehabilitation projects were gaoal indicated NNRHA would be eager to
reinstate the facelift project. The City once fadd facelift project during the summer months
(May to October of each year). NNRHA had discustiesl possibility of reinstating the
program. She reiterated the facelift project wamething to consider in that the City's
population was aging and home rehabilitation ptsjemuld become an issue that needed to be
addressed.

Councilwoman Woodbury stated the City had reakisepresentation from Mr.
Aaron Brooks and as she understood it, City Coumas to receive a study by the end of March.
The City also received a presentation by anothéityerelating to the Old Newport News
Hospital. She inquired whether there was anytmew on these projects. City Manager
Hildebrandt replied the developers of the Newpoeivd General Hospital filed an application
with the State for low-income housing tax creditattwas due on May 15, 2009. The City, nor
the developer, would know whether the tax credigsenapproved until September 2009. The
developer would report back to City Council onceytheceived word about the credits. Mr. Al
Riutort, Director, Department of Planning, statbé project was proceeding. City Manager
Hildebrandt knew of two studies that had been cetepl by the Aaron Brooks team and hoped
to provide a report to City Council soon.

[I. Freight Containers

City Manager Hildebrandt stated staff had been wgrkon the issue of an
amendment to regulate the use of freight contajreerside of the M2, Heavy Industrial zoning
district. The intent of the proposed ordinancepfcattached) would help to better manage and
regulate the proliferation and reuse of surplud-peated freight containers in the residential,
commercial and light industrial zoning districtsdato eliminate them from being used as
permanent storage. He introduced Mr. Harold Rpdaiector, Department of Codes
Compliance, to provide a presentation on reguldti@ight containers.

Councilwoman McMillan stated she assumed, “rigfft the bat,” that freight
containers were not allowed in residential neighbods. City Manager Hildebrandt replied
freight containers would only be allowed in nonidestial locations. City Attorney Stuart Katz



Page 8
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

replied freight containers were only allowed im#esidential neighborhoods, unless someone
had a building permit for a project under consinrct

Councilwoman McMillan voiced concern about adigicontainer that had been
in a backyard of a home at 847 Jouett Drive for tin®nwhich was visible from the street. City
Manager Hildebrandt referred the matter to Mr. MiehNall, Assistant Director, Department of
Codes Compliance.

Mr. Roach reminded the issue to regulate the afséeight containers had
previously been discussed by City Council and heehbextensively reviewed by staff and the
Regulations Committee of the City’'s Planning Conwius. Currently, the City did not have an
ordinance that regulated the use of freight coetain The City could construe freight containers
to be outside storage, which could prohibit themouigh the Zoning Ordinance, but doing so
would have negative consequences and other unederffects, i.e. restricting their use at
construction sites and retail stores, such as WatMnd Target, who had seasonal storage
needs. The intent of the proposed ordinance wa%)tdccommodate concerns expressed by
City Council in the past; 2) Accommodate temporsigrage needs for retailers, such as Wal-
Mart and Target; 3) Accommodate needs for the coason industry for storage on
construction sites; 4) Prohibit the use of freigbihtainers in residential and commercial districts
in most circumstances; 5) Discourage the use ajlfteeontainers as alternatives to adding onto
an existing building; and 6) Prevent freight conéas from being stacked in industrial areas,
except Port areas. Mr. Roach provided a presentatFreight Containers in the City of
Newport News,” which is attached and made a pattie$e minutes.

Mr. Roach reported there was an abundant sugpiseight containers available
from Hampton Roads’ port facilities. There wast@rsy demand for low costs, durable and
portable storage in Hampton Roads. There wereljaemesses in Hampton Roads that resold
used shipping containers. Mid-Atlantic LeasingCbiesapeake offered used containers for under
$2,000. Freight containers were frequently usetbiag-term storage facilities in commercial,
industrial and school districts, often without respto zoning and fire safety codes. In the
absence of a specific ordinance regulating freagimtainers, the City Attorney advised that they
be treated as outside storage. Outside storageevastted by right in the M2, Heavy Industrial
district, as an ancillary use in the M1, Light Isthial district, and by special exception in the
C2, General Commercial district. Treating all e containers as outside storage would restrict
their use as temporary storage facilities in thay'€i commercial districts and during
construction. To avoid inconsistent enforcemertd€s Compliance had generally avoided
prosecutions. The few prosecutions conducted bad the result of complaints received.

A windshield survey conducted in December 2038thHe Department of Codes
Compliance, found over 30 locations with freighbtzners. Some sites contained multiple



Page 9
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

containers. Many of the containers found did nadesbe zoning setback and fire separation
requirements, nor were they screened from view fifearright-of-way.

Councilwoman McMillan understood that a freigbntainer, on a tractor trailer
cab bed, located on the street, in a commercia, amas legal. Mr. Roach replied a freight
container, on a tractor trailer cab bed, was l@agabmmercial areas, with a few considerations.
If a freight container was on a trailer, the Citpwid not consider it a freight container for a
storage use, provided that the trailer was operatdehad valid plates. A freight container was
the responsibility of the Department of Codes Coamgle if it was parked on private property,
and was the responsibility of the Police Departnileibivas parked on a City street.

Councilwoman McMillan inquired whether the freighontainers parked on
Industrial Park Drive were legal. City Manager débrandt inquired whether they were
connected to a cab. Councilwoman McMillan replibey were not connected to a cab. City
Manager Hildebrandt did not believe they were leggl City Ordinance. Councilwoman
McMillan inquired whether the freight containers revepoliced. City Manager Hildebrandt
replied he would see to them being policed. Mstigihe Mignogna, Zoning Administrator,
Department of Codes Compliance, believed they wegelated by a separate Chapter in the
City Code, by their length, height and width. Qifgnager Hildebrandt stated he did not believe
they were legal on any public street if they weoé connected to a cab. He referred the matter
to Deputy City Manager Neil Morgan.

Mr. Roach noted the proposed ordinance would raptish the following: 1)

Permit containers to be used for long-term stotiagel2 and M1 districts, subject to location
and screening requirements; 2) Allow temporaryagjeras an accessory use in Zoning Districts:
P1, Park; O1, Office; 02, Office Park and O3, GdfiResearch and Development; M1, Light
Industrial and M2, Heavy Industrial; C1, Retail Quoercial; C2, General Commercial and C5,
Oyster Point Commercial, subject to location angesging requirements; 3) Prohibit storage use
in residential districts, except when used in catine with an active building permit; and 4)
Permit short-term storage uses during construdtiail zoning districts.

Mr. Roach noted the following anticipated impadtsLong-term storage uses in
Commercial and Park Zoning Districts would be pbiteid, affecting Public Schools and the
Shipyard Apprentice School; 2) Industrial Uses wiobE required to provide screening from
public right-of-way and site containers in comptarwith proposed ordinance; and 3) Industrial
uses that could not meet location requirements @vbalprohibited from having a container.

Councilwoman Woodbury questioned how the Schooted the freight
containers. Mr. Roach replied they stored athletigipment, lawn care products, etc.



Page 10
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Councilwoman Vick inquired how an establishmen&iC1 district would be able
to have a freight container. City Manager Hildelotareplied one would have to construct a
permanent storage shed that met building code negents.

Councilwoman Woodbury felt School sites, in partar, would be imposed with
increased financial burden to have to replace tineight containers with permanent structures.
She inquired what they would do with the freighhtzoners they already had purchased. Mr.
Roach replied that issue had been debated andatedicit was fair criticism; however,
proponents of regulated freight containers felesiheeded to be improved with permanent
structures.

City Manager Hildebrandt inquired of the price laild a permanent storage
structure. Mr. Roach replied freight containergeveheaper to purchase at the cost of $2,000.
A permanent structure, about the same size asghtireontainer, would cost $4,000.

Councilwoman Woodbury inquired how businessesSattbols would discard of
their freight containers.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated only ten schdwdsl freight containers. The
City was not talking about much money. The elirtiovaof freight containers would improve
the aesthetics of the community.

Councilwoman McMillan stated not only would it stieetically improve the
community, but freight containers rusted easilygd sooked horrible after a while. They were
metal boxes sitting on the ground and were gernenalt on any substantial base, so they caused
drainage issues and looked horrible.

City Manger Hildebrandt stated with a $300 millibudget the Schools could
absorb $20,000 very easily, in any year.

Councilwoman Woodbury envisioned a horror. Wioitee day driving down one
of the highways she envisioned seeing 100 to 1&@Ht containers that had been discarded.
She inquired where discarded freight containerslevgo. Mr. Riutort replied that was the
reason the City was trying to regulate freight eamgrs.

Councilwoman McMillan recalled someone had cotegefreight containers into
temporary housing.

City Manager Hildebrandt stated, since there sekta be reasonable consensus
among City Council, he would have staff move fomvarith the matter to have the Planning
Commission consider and act on the issue. Onceoepp and acted upon by the Planning
Commission, he would present City Council with arial ordinance for approval.



Page 11
Minutes of Work Session
May 26, 2009

Councilwoman Woodbury felt some language neededséd included in the
ordinance about how one disposed of a freight costahat was already in use.

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS,
ON MOTION, COUNCIL ADJOURNED AT 5:20 P.M.

Jennifer D. Walker, CMC Joseph C. Whitaker
Chief Deputy City Clerk Vice Mayor
Presiding Officer

A true copy, teste:

City Clerk



